
 
 

Geoff Little 
Chief Executive 

 
Our Ref LW 

Your Ref HSC/AJT 
Date 22 February 2021 
Please ask for Leigh Webb 

Direct Line  
Direct Fax  

E-mail l.webb@bury.gov.uk 
 
 

 
TO: All Members of Health Scrutiny Committee 

 
Councillors : S Smith (Chair), J Grimshaw, D Gunther, S Haroon, 
M Hayes, T Holt, K Hussain, O Kersh, B Mortenson, C Tegolo, R Walker 

and S Walmsley 
 

 
Dear Member/Colleague 

 
Health Scrutiny Committee 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Health Scrutiny Committee which will be 
held as follows:- 

 

Date: Tuesday, 2 March 2021 

Place:  Virtual (MS Teams) 

Time: 7.00 pm 

Briefing 

Facilities: 

If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members 

require briefing on any particular item on the 
Agenda, the appropriate Director/Senior Officer 

originating the related report should be 
contacted. 

Notes:  

 
 
AGENDA 

 
The Agenda for the meeting is attached.  

 
Reports are enclosed only for those attending the meeting and for those without access 
to the Council’s Intranet or Website. 

 

Legal & Democratic Services 
Division 

 
Janet Witkowski Acting Assistant 

Director of Legal &  

Democratic Services 

Town Hall 
Knowsley Street 

Bury  BL9 0SW 

www.bury.gov.uk 

Electronic service of legal 
documents accepted only 

at: 
E-mail: 

legal.services@bury.gov.uk 
Fax: 0161 253 5119 

 



 
The Agenda and Reports are available on the Council's Intranet for Councillors and 

Officers and also on the Council’s Website at www.bury.gov.uk – click on Agendas, 
Minutes and Forward Plan. 

 
Copies of printed reports can also be obtained on request by contacting the Democratic 
Services Officer named above. 

 
 

Yours sincerely 
 

 
 

Chief Executive 
 

http://www.bury.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 

2   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
Members of Health Scrutiny Committee are asked to consider whether they have an 
interest in any of the matters on the agenda and if so, to formally declare that 
interest. 
 

3   MINUTES  (Pages 5 - 10) 
 
To approve as a correct record, the minutes of the last meeting held on 3 December 
2020  
 

4   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   
 
A period of 30 minutes has been set aside for members of the public to ask 
questions in advance or virtually at the meeting on matters considered at the last 
meeting and set out in the minutes or on the agenda for the meeting. Questions 
should be submitted in advance to democratic.services@bury.gov.uk no later than 
Friday 26 February. 
 

5   COVID 19 UPDATE   
 
A presentation will be given at the meeting providing the latest information and 
statistical details. 
 

6   PERSONA CARE AND SUPPORT LIMITED - CONTRACT RENEWAL 1ST APRIL 
2021 TO 31ST MARCH 2031  (Pages 11 - 14) 
 
A report from the Director of Community Commissioning (DASS) is attached. 
 

7   URGENT BUSINESS   
 
Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair agrees may 
be considered as a matter of urgency.  
 

mailto:democratic.services@bury.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
1 

 
 Minutes of: HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
 Date of Meeting: 3 December 2020 

 

 Present: Councillor S Smith (in the Chair) 
Councillors D Gunther, S Haroon, M Hayes, T Holt, 

K Hussain, O Kersh, B Mortenson, C Tegolo, R Walker and 
S Walmsley 
 

 Also in 
attendance: 

 
N Begum, W Blandamer, K Hayat, L Jones, M Nixon,  

T Roberts, J Robinson & Cllr A Simpson 
 

 Public Attendance: 

 

No members of the public were present virtually at the 

meeting. 
 Apologies for Absence: 

 

 Councillor J Grimshaw & Dr J Schryer. 

 

 

HSC.1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

Apologies for absence submitted from Councillor J Grimshaw and Dr J Schryer. 

 

HSC.2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
No declarations of interest were submitted. 
 

HSC.3  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  
 

There were no pre submitted questions and no Members of the public were in 
virtual attendance at the meeting. 
 

HSC.4  MINUTES  
 

The minutes of the meeting held on the 24th September 2020 were submitted for 
approval. 

 
It was agreed: 

 

That the minutes be approved as a correct record.  
 

HSC.5  COVID UPDATE- RESPONSE AND RECOVERY  
 

Lesley Jones, Director of Public Health provided the committee with a verbal 

update and the latest information related to Covid 19. 
 

The latest statistics were provided on the number of deaths and positive cases in 
the borough which was still one of the highest in the Greater Manchester area and 
North West region.  

 
It was expected that there would be an increase in the new year with the usual 

winter pressures and the relaxation of rules over the Christmas period.  
 

Document Pack Page 5 Agenda Item 3



Health Scrutiny Committee, 3 December 2020  

 
 

 
2 

The Tier 3 restriction would be reviewed on the 16th December and there were 
plans across Greater Manchester to roll out rapid testing devices which had helped 
control the virus nationally at places such as care homes and universities. Local 

pilots would be conducted with schools and care facilities. 
 

Information was provided on vaccines and the logistical challenges involved a 
group had been set up to manage this when the vaccine arrive in the borough. 
 

Councillor Dorothy Gunther asked would her GP contact her for a vaccine. 
It was reported that calling systems were being developed and at this moment in 

time it was hard to provide details when you may expect to receive the vaccine. 
 
The Chair, Councill Stella Smith questioned if there could be a duplication of 

workload with overlaps of national and local systems. 
There was a confidence of robust and safe systems being in place and people 

would be invited for a vaccine appropriately. 
 
Councillor Sandra Walmsley wondered if plans had been approved on how the 

vaccines will be delivery to care home residents and staff as a priority. It was 
reported that plans have been looked at and there was a determination to 

overcome challenges so people receive the vaccine as soon as possible. 
 
The Chair commented on delays receiving test results after 2 to 3 days leading to 

problems and was pleased to see quicker turnaround times.  
 

Councillor Roy Walker had reviewed the figures over the last few months and 
enquired how Bury was ranked higher than other parts of the region. The national 
lockdown and Tier 3 restrictions in certain areas had helped reduced cases in 

some areas. Repeating advice about face coverings, washing hands and social 
distancing would remain important.  

 
If measures were lifted too soon then figures can shoot up and there was real 

concern about people mixing over the Christmas period.  
 
It was agreed: 

 
That the report be noted. 

 

HSC.6  MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES UPDATE  
 

Kez Hayat, Commissioning Programme Manager for NHS Bury Clinical 
Commissioning Group was in attendance at the meeting with colleagues Jannine 

Robinson, Nasima Begum and Marina Nixon from the CCG to provide Members 
with a presentation on mental health and Covid 19 recovery. 
 

It was reported that Programme plans had been reviewed and priorities updated 
to reflect the Covid 19 recovery phase. 

 
A diagram to explain the Bury Mental Health Adult Services structure was shared 
with the committee and provided information on a complex pathway to access 

adult mental health services. 
 

Document Pack Page 6



 Health Scrutiny Committee, 3 December 2020 

 
 

 
3 

Support for children and young people was detailed with information on support 
lines and digital resources which have been launched in response to the pandemic. 
Early Break have a team of staff covering the help lines and the service is 

gathering detailed monitoring data to produce an evaluation report. 
 

The Emotional Health & Wellbeing Offer for Bury was detailed with the Getting 
Help Line establishing excellent links with the other emotional health and 
wellbeing services in the borough.  They are linking people into other services as 

needed and the team has developed a wealth of knowledge of what local support 
is available. 

 
The GM Bereavement service was launched in May, enquiries from Bury residents 
had been low, although the service provides limited listening support and practical 

advice before signposting people for counselling or further support to local 
services.   

 
Support for the BAME community was reported and several local support 
organisations offer practical help and activity sessions to help mental wellbeing. 

 
An update was presented on the demand for mental health service with a 

summary of data provided and regular updates on demand and capacity were 
being monitored. 
 

Information was given on services which have been maintained and their activity 
levels via remote appointments or telephone. 

 
Future plans for mental health services in Bury were provided with priority actions 
identified for certain group and there would be several key areas for development 

in the coming months. 
 

The Chair commented that some of the text contained in the presentation report 
format was too small to read and asked if this could be increased in size. 

 
Councillor Walker asked about people who had a mental illness and were on the 
streets, would current services be able to support that group. It was reported that 

there was help available to the homeless and most vulnerable and examples of 
support provided to rough sleepers was explained. 

 
Councillor Holt asked about demand for services from people with learning 
disabilities and it was explained that these have had to operate differently due to 

Covid rules but outreach support had still been provided. Councillor Holt added 
that day centres had not been operating as usual and was the system coping. It 

was reported that during the first lockdown a resource had been produced 
providing information on support available such as community hubs to help with 
food and medicine deliveries.  

 
Due to the impact of Covid, Councillors expressed concerns with a potential rise in 

cases involving domestic violence and suicide rates especially in young males. 
Resources would be made available to target certain problems although it was 
difficult to predict short and long term at this moment in time. 

 
The Chair thanked all the CCG officers for attending on behalf of the committee. 

Document Pack Page 7



Health Scrutiny Committee, 3 December 2020  

 
 

 
4 

 
It was agreed: 

 

That the report be noted. 
 

HSC.7  INTERMEDIATE CARE REVIEW  
 

Will Blandamer (Executive Director, Strategic Commissioning, Bury Council and 

Bury CC) provided the committee with an update on the intermediate care review 
of facilities across the borough. 

 
The 6 week review consultation ended on the 30th November and 278 people took 
part in the consultation by either visiting the website or requesting information. 

 
29 people went on to download further information and a breakdown of this data 

is listed below:- 
 37% were health and social care staff 
 60% were members of the public 

 3% were carers 
 85% lived in Bury 

 
27 people contributed to feedback and over 48% supported the proposals. 
 

Some of the comments which related to being negatively affected are detailed 
below. 

 A question about the availability of care beds not illness beds (Although this 
was not the purpose of the review) 

 A concern about the future use of the Bealey Community Hospital building 

 The needs to ensure the availability of complex rehabilitation and no plans 
to change this availability 

 A concern about less choice for intermediate care and we would be keeping 
the same amount of choice 

 
No other negative comments had been submitted. 
 

26 people went on to say what they would like the Bealey site to be used for (If 
not intermediate care) housing, leisure and education being the most popular 

usage. 
 
The Chair commented on the importance of step down care from hospital 

admission before returning home and thanked Will Blandamer for the update. 
 

An updated report on any proposals could be included at a future meeting in the 
new year once the consultation had been fully reviewed. 
 

It was agreed: 
 

That the report be noted.  
 

HSC.8  URGENT BUSINESS  

 
No urgent business was reported at the meeting. 

Document Pack Page 8



 Health Scrutiny Committee, 3 December 2020 

 
 

 
5 

 
 
 

 
 

COUNCILLOR S SMITH 
Chair  
 

(Note:  The meeting started at 7.00pm and ended at 8.40pm) 
 

 

Document Pack Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

MEETING:   

 

Health Scrutiny Committee 
 
DATE: 

 
2nd March 2021 

  
SUBJECT: 

 
Persona care and Support Limited – Contract Renewal 

1st April 2021 to 31st March 2031 
 
REPORT FROM: 

 
Julie Gonda, Director of Community Commissioning, 

(DASS) 
 

CONTACT OFFICER: 

 

Deborah Yates, Provider Relationship Manager, 
Community Commissioning Division 

  

 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 

 

1.1. The purpose of this briefing is to outline the proposal to renew the contract 

between Bury Council and Persona Care and Support Limited.  The main 

objective is to deliver an outcome based 10 year contract from 1st April 2021. 

This will set out the status of existing services provided by Persona and 

alongside our Innovation and Savings Programme for 2021-2023 will capture 

our future ambition to innovate service delivery, ensure value for money and 

meet the changing needs of the partners and customers.   

1.2. The full report presented to the Executive Board on 15th February 2021 was 

approved and is embedded at the end of this briefing.  The report will be a key 

decision for Cabinet on 24th March 2021. 

 

2.0 BACKGROUND 

 

2.1 Persona Care and Support Limited (Persona) was incorporated as a private 

limited company on 10th August 2015 and officially ‘stepped out’ of the Local 

Authority on 1st October 2015 as Bury Council’s arms-length trading company 

or Local Authority Trading Company (LATCo).  Persona provides a range of 

adult social care services, some of which were previously in-house services of 

the Council, to people who are vulnerable due to age or disability.  These 

include; Day services, Short Stay Services; Supported Living Services; Extra 

Care and Shared Lives. 

 

Agenda 

Item 
 

 

SCRUTINY REPORT   

 

Document Pack Page 11 Agenda Item 6



 2 

2.2 Work has been ongoing between Persona and the Council and with the onset of 

Covid-19, the partners have come together in more innovative ways to manage 

the pandemic and meet the challenges faced.  This has meant working in 

different ways and the positive outcome of this has realised a shared approach 

to change, develop and innovate services.  What has emerged is a changing 

relationship and opportunities which we want to build upon for the future 

3.0.  FUTURE VISION   

3.1. The main objective is to deliver an outcome based 10 year contract 

commencing on 1st April 2021.  This will set out the status of existing services 

provided by Persona and alongside our Innovation and Savings programme for 

2021-2023 will capture our future ambition to innovate service delivery and 

meet the changing needs of the partners and customers. 

 

3.2. The benefit of this approach will give the Council, Persona and our wider 

partners a more sustainable commissioning platform on which to develop new 

and innovative services, sustain a quality and committed workforce and allow 

opportunities for external funding, broader business development and build on 

community assets, realising social value, which in turn will benefit the 

customers and the people of Bury.  

 

3.3. The Contract will be flexible enough to allow for national policy change which 

may result in local changes in direction and/or financial restrictions that may be 

required in response to any such change.  Together we need to be able to 

demonstrate value for money, quality of provision and continuous development 

and innovation. The overarching principles in the agreement between partners 

will minimise any emerging risks and provide reassurance to all parties. 

 
 

4.0. 10 YEAR CONTRACT 

 

4.1. A 10 year block contract will bring about an opportunistic change in the way we 

work together, moving away from being service specific and counting activity 

and instead moving towards developing an outcome based, flexible 

collaboration which is person centred and innovative in its approach, fostering 

continuous development and learning.  

 

4.2. The contract will set out clear outputs, measures and accountability and 

provide stability to Persona, enabling them to explore other business 

opportunities, which over time will reduce the reliance on Council funding.  We 

will together agree enough flexibility in the contract to respond to the changing 

landscape and build an environment for Persona to mobilise resources as they 

see fit to manage demand and move funds/assets around within the block 

contract to deliver the right care and support, at the right time and in the right 

place. 

 

4.3. In addition, it is also envisaged that Persona will retain the status of provider of 

‘first choice and last resort’, which in cases of emergency or market failure will 

allow the Council to fulfil its statutory duty of care. 

Document Pack Page 12



 3 

5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 The current Persona contract is in place until 31st March 2021, with a contract 

value for 2019/2020 of £12,393,408.  The 10 year contract would commence 

on 1st April 2021 to 31st March 2031.  The contract value will be reviewed and 

set annually taking into account outcomes, performance, demand management 

and any further savings pressures on the Council.   

5.2 Innovations and savings between Persona and the Council have already been 

set for the first two years of the new contract.  Year one, 2021/22 will see a 

reduction in the baseline contract value of £1million and a further £1.5million in 

year two, 2022/2023.  Subsequent years would be subject to an annual review 

and an agreed efficiency target by the partners. 

5.3 Reducing the contract value will be enabled by transforming services and 

developing new ways of working to realise efficiencies, and in some cases it will 

mean the potential reduction or closure of services. This will impact on staffing 

levels however every possible action will be taken to minismise this impact and 

due process will be followed ensuring staff are appropriately engaged and 

consulted with. The ten year contract will help Persona develop new business 

opportunities which could help to minimise any staff impacts. 

 

6.0. CONCLUSION 
 

6.1. It is recommended that Health Scrutiny Committee: 
 

 Receive the report presented to the Executive Board on 15th February 2021 

proposing the renewal of the contract between Bury Council and Persona 

Care and Support Limited for a period of 10 years commencing on 1st April 

2021. 

  
 Note the Executive Board approved the proposal on 15th February 2021. 

 

 Note the Strategic Commissioning Board received the report on 1st March 

2021. 

 

 Note the report will be presented at Cabinet on 24th March 2021 

 
 

 
List of Background Papers:- 
 

The full report presented to the Executive Board on the 15th February 2021 is 
embedded for information/detail; 

 
 

Executive Team 

Report - Persona Contract Renewal 15th February 2021 FINAL.docx
 

 

Document Pack Page 13



 4 

 
Contact Details:- 

 
Deborah Yates, Provder Relationship Manager 

Community Commissioning Division 
d.yates@bury.gov.uk 
 

Executive Director sign off Date: 10th February 2021 
 

Executive Board Meeting Date: 15th February 2021 

Document Pack Page 14


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	6 Persona Care and Support Limited - Contract Renewal 1st April 2021 to 31st March 2031

